
PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 
COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 1ST MARCH, 2016

A MEETING of the PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL 

CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on TUESDAY, 

1 MARCH 2016 at 10.00 am

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

23 February 2016

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Order of Business 

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. Minute (Pages 1 - 4) 2 mins

Minute of Meeting of 10 December 2015 to be noted and signed by the 
Chairman (copy attached)

5. The Petitions Procedure (Pages 5 - 6) 2 mins

Note meeting procedure (copy of extract from the Scottish Borders Council 
Petitions Procedure attached).

6. Heriot's access to public transport has been considerably worsened by 
the railway and the subsequent underpass. 

30 mins

(a)  Petition (Pages 7 - 
22)

Copy attached of petition submission form.
The original petition and total list of signatures will be 
available for inspection prior to and at the meeting.

(b)  Briefing Note by Depute Chief Executive (Place) (Pages 23 - 
24)

(Copy attached)
7. Petition considered inadmissible (Pages 25 - 26) 2 mins

Consider Briefing Note by Clerk to the Council (copy attached).
8. Any Other Items previously circulated 

Public Document Pack



9. Any Other Items which the Chairman decides are urgent 

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors A. J. Nicol (Chairman), S. Bell, D. Parker, D. Paterson, 
J. Torrance and T. Weatherston

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling   01835 826504
Email:- fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTE of Meeting of the PETITIONS AND 
DEPUTATIONS COMMITTEE held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Headquarters, 
Newtown St Boswells, TD6 0SA on 
Thursday, 10 December, 2015 at 10.00 am

Present:- Councillors A. J. Nicol (Chairman), S. Bell, D. Paterson, J. Torrance and 
T. Weatherston

Apologies:-
Also Present:-

Councillors D. Parker
Councillors S. Marshall, W. McAteer

In Attendance:-

Petitioner:-

Service Director Commercial Services (from para 3.5), Strategic Transport 
Services Manager, Clerk to the Council, Democratic Services Officer 
(F. Walling).

Mr Andy Maybury

1. MINUTE 
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of 1 October 2015. 

DECISION
APPROVED and signed by the Chairman.

2. THE PETITIONS PROCEDURE 
There had been circulated copies of an extract from the Scottish Borders Council Petitions 
Procedure which set out the process to be followed at the meeting.

DECISION
NOTED.

3.1      PETITION: 20/120 BUS SERVICE 
There had been circulated copies of a petition, submitted to the Council on 19 August 
2015, entitled “120 Bus Petition”.  The form was accompanied by a large number of 
signatures and was submitted by the Chairman of Hawick Community Council.  However 
it was explained that action had been co-ordinated with other Community Councils, with 
elected Councillors and the local MSP.   There had also been circulated copies of a 
briefing note by the Service Director Neighbourhood Services.  The Chairman welcomed 
Mr Andy Maybury to the meeting to present the petition on behalf of the Principal 
Petitioner and asked for a round of introductions from Members of the Committee and 
officers.  

3.2. On being invited by the Chairman to address the Committee, Mr Maybury explained that 
the petition had grown out of a number of concerns, some general and some specific to 
the bus service about which the petition referred.   He challenged an often expressed view 
that one must have a car to survive in the Borders, maintaining that 85 – 90% of the 
population of the Scottish Borders lived within major settlements but 20% of households 
did not have a car.  Bus services were the key for transport between settlements and, 
although once considered a public service, were more recently left to be run on a 
commercial basis.  Mr Maybury explained that the No. 20 (later No.120) bus service was a 
combination of four services: Hawick to Jedburgh; Jedburgh to Kelso; a Jedburgh loop 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



incorporating Howdenburn; and Hawick loop incorporating Weensland Road.  The route 
was taken over in 2011 by First Borders and operated on a commercial basis resulting in 
a significant increase in fares and subsequent outcry from users.  The Council had then 
provided a subsidy for some return fares to reduce these to a more reasonable level.  
However sometime in December 2014/ January 2015 First Borders dropped the service 
from its standard schedule and said they would pull out.  A separate timetable was issued 
for Services120 and 20 with temporary financial support from Scottish Borders Council.  
Mr Maybury alleged that nothing more was communicated to the public domain until late 
summer when the Council’s temporary support ended and the service was threatened.  It 
was at this stage that the petition to save this bus service was started. Mr Maybury 
outlined that after 17 August a revised bus timetable resulted in the previous 13 Hawick – 
Jedburgh and 9 Jedburgh – Kelso journeys being reduced to 6 and 3 respectively.  After 
particular engagement with residents in Eckford the timetable was further revised to offer 
8 Hawick – Jedburgh and 7 Jedburgh – Kelso journeys but Mr Maybury pointed out that 
this service was still a reduction from the original.  He concluded by saying that the 
petition asked for the retention of this bus service. 

3.3      Members welcomed the petition.  In response to a request for further clarification about 
exactly what petitioners were requesting, Mr Maybury said he had not seen any 
communication from the Council to indicate that the support for the bus service would 
extend beyond the end of the calendar year.  He gave examples of where there was still 
room for improvement in the service offered and expressed general concern that, where 
bus services were passed to commercial operators, less-used routes would become 
unworkable. However he clarified that the main purpose of the petition was that the 
service be retained.  In a reply to a question about passenger numbers on the 120/20 bus 
service, Mr Maybury believed this to fluctuate significantly from a sole passenger to in 
excess of twelve.  However he pointed out that for a few people the service was their only 
option for means of travel to work, school, health centre, etc. He was aware and accepted 
that the provision of bus services was not a statutory service for the Council and that there 
had to be a judgement in terms of what services could be offered on a limited budget. 

3.4 Scottish Borders Council’s Strategic Transport Services Manager, Mr Timothy 
Stephenson, gave a response to the petition on behalf of the Service Director Commercial 
Services.  He gave further information on the background to the situation. The bus route 
in question was operated on a commercial basis by First Borders, with no subsidy from 
the Council, until January 2015 at which time First Borders decided that they were no 
longer able to operate the route commercially.   The Council stepped in and offered a 
temporary solution to subsidise the service with First Borders until a re-tender of bus 
services could be undertaken in the Summer of 2015. It was explained to Councillors at 
the time that this was a temporary solution for 6 months and budget would be found from 
existing resources. Following the re-tender it became obvious that the cost of operating 
this route was far in excess of any available budget.  Mr Stephenson explained that one of 
the Bus Service regulations set by the Traffic Commissioner was that the Council must 
not run a subsidised service alongside a commercial service.  He also clarified that the 
only bus services whose provision was statutory for the Council were the home to school 
services.  To address the local concern a restructured service 120 (re-numbered 20) was 
designed using a single bus operating with a reduced timetable and frequency based on 
passenger numbers gathered from data collected since January 2015. This revised 
timetable was sent out to communities for consultation in July 2015.  As part of the 
consultation Mr Stephenson had attended a meeting of local residents at Eckford.  As a 
result, and taking into account other feedback, some minor changes were made to the 
timetable to try to accommodate community requests, particularly around provision to 
Eckford, within Jedburgh, and Weensland Road, Hawick. The revised service had 
operated since 17 August 2015.  Further timetable changes were introduced on 28 
September 2015 – these were small frequency enhancements made largely at the 
Community Councils’ request to accommodate local traveller demand.  The service was 
supported by Demand Responsive Transport and the regulation services to college and 
schools which could be used by members of the public.  Mr Stephenson added that to 

Page 2



date there had been very little negative passenger response to the changes in this service 
and that the service would continue at least until the end of the current financial year at 31 
March 2016.  After that date, support from the Council would depend on the amount 
allocated in the budget for subsidising bus services and competition with other bus routes; 
the current total budget for subsidised services being £1.9m for the whole of the Borders 
area.  From early in 2016 the Council would begin to engage with Community Councils 
and with commercial operators in order to determine priorities for services and where 
money should be spent in terms of subsidised services.  At present 30% of bus services 
in rural areas were commercial and 70% were subsidised.  For the Central Borders area 
these figures were reversed.  

3.5 In response to Members’ questions Mr Stephenson gave further detailed information 
about the service route and its level of usage.  He confirmed that, if the budget was 
available, there was no intention to reduce the 20/120 service.  Mr Maybury thanked Mr 
Stephenson for the sympathetic response to the petition and complemented the process 
carried out by the Council.  Replying to his question about who was best placed to 
determine a bus service timetable, Mr Stephenson reiterated that the Council would 
engage in a big conversation with the public about priorities for services and timetables in 
Spring 2016. The consultation would include use of VOiCE, the Council’s on-line 
community engagement tool.  Mr Stephenson’s personal view was that each Community 
Council should have a ‘Transport Champion’ with whom the Council could liaise 1:1 about 
timetables and who could pass on information and requests from the community.  The 
Council would also use ‘ambassadors’ to provide assistance and collect information from 
passengers on buses, following the lead and effective use of ambassadors for the 
Borders railway.  With regard to Demand Responsive Transport, Mr Stephenson advised 
that this service, whereby bookings were taken the previous day, was proving successful 
for a Hawick – Newcastleton service and also for a route in Kelso.  Discussion continued 
on the size of buses used for certain routes in relation to usage.  It was noted that it was 
more effective to keep the same vehicle on one route and that as well as being limited by 
vehicle availability size was dependent on peak demand at school times and the 
requirement for accessibility at all times. 

3.6 On behalf of Members of the Committee, the Chairman thanked Mr Maybury for his 
attendance and excellent presentation of the petition, and Mr Stephenson for his helpful 
and sympathetic response.   He also asked Mr Maybury to pass on thanks to the Principal 
Petitioner and others for raising this petition which had allowed discussion and a clear 
expansion of the issues.  After further discussion Members recognised the importance of 
effective communication going forward, with the users of bus services, in order to achieve 
best value in terms of the decision about where the Council’s budget for subsidised bus 
services be directed.  It was agreed to refer the petition and associated Minute to the 
Service Director Commercial Services for his attention.

DECISION

(a) NOTED:-

(i) the petition calling for the retention of the 20/120 bus service;

(ii) that although there was general satisfaction with the current level of 
this service the timetable could be improved by being extended; and

(iii) that from early 2016 the Council would be carrying out public 
consultation  to identify priorities in terms of provision of subsidised 
bus services.

(b)       AGREED:-
Page 3



(i) to recognise that a bus service was being provided which was 
satisfactory for some passengers, albeit with some gaps;

(ii) to applaud the Strategic Transport Services’ ongoing communication 
with communities in respect of the 20/120 bus service; and

(iii) to refer the petition to the Service Director Commercial Services with 
the recommendation that he investigate the necessary mechanism for 
effective communication with communities, including through 
Community Councils, to ensure correct identification of priorities, in 
terms of the provision of subsidised bus services by the Council 
within the limitations of the budget.

4. PETITION CONSIDERED INADMISSIBLE 
There had been circulated copies of a briefing note by the Clerk to the Council advising 
the Committee of the non-acceptance of a petition received against the siting of a 3G 
Pitch in Victoria Park, Peebles.  The note explained that the petition was received on 26 
November 2015. The Executive Committee had agreed at its meeting on 29 September 
2015 that Victoria Park was the preferred location for a 3G synthetic pitch in Peebles.  
Within the terms of the Petitions Procedure agreed at Council, petitions would not be 
accepted which ‘relate to a decision made by the Council or a committee during the 
preceding six months’.  A letter was therefore written to the Principal Petitioner on 2 
December 2015 advising that the petition could not be accepted for consideration by the 
Petitions and Deputations Committee at this time. In the ensuing discussion Councillor 
Bell advised that he had since been contacted by the Principal Petitioner and had 
provided information on the process in relation to the proposed 3G Pitch in terms of future 
decisions on the application for planning consent, consideration of the use of the land by 
the Peebles Common Good Fund Sub Committee, and provision of capital budget.

DECISION
NOTED.

The meeting concluded at 11.35 am  

Page 4



Extract from the Scottish Borders Council Petitions Procedure

15. The procedure at the meeting, for each petition considered, shall be 
as follows:

(i) the meeting shall be in public unless the subject matter of the 
petition would be deemed to be confidential under the terms of 
Section 7A of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973;

(ii) the principal petitioner, or named deputy, shall give a 
statement in explanation of the petition;

(iii) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to 
ask questions or the petitioner or their named deputy;

(iv) there will be an opportunity for any Director(s), Executive 
Member(s) and Community Planning Partner representative(s) 
present to ask questions of the petitioner or their named 
deputy;

(v) a response to the petition may be heard from a Director, 
Executive Member and/or Community Planning Partner 
representative present at the meeting;

(vi) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to 
ask questions of any Director, Executive Member(s) and 
Community Planning Partner representative(s) present at the 
meeting;

(vii) there will be an opportunity for the petitioner or their named 
deputy to ask questions of any Elected Member, Director or 
Community Planning Partner representative present at the 
meeting; 

(viii)Members of the Committee shall then discuss the information 
available and consider their findings.  The Committee may 
defer a decision should further information be required. 

Note:  any contribution on behalf of the petition from a second or 
other speaker(s) shall be at the discretion of the Chairman.  The 
public will not be allowed to speak at the meeting unless invited to 
do so by the Chairman.

16. The Petitions Committee shall agree to one of the following:-

(i) refer the petition to another Committee or Director, with or 
without a recommendation or comment.  That Committee or 
Director shall then make the final decision which could include 
taking no further action; 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



(ii) refer the petition to the relevant Community Planning Partner, 
with or without a recommendation or comment, if appropriate; 

(iii) that the issue(s) raised do not merit or do not require further 
action. 

17. The decision of the Petitions Committee, and any reason for that 
decision, shall be recorded in the Minute of the Meeting and a copy 
of the Minute shall be sent to the principal petitioner by Democratic 
Services staff.  Where the petition is referred to a Director or 
another body, the responsibility for communicating the final 
outcome of the petition is also referred.  Updates on these 
outcomes will be provided to the Petitions Committee.  

18. There will be no right of appeal in response to a final decision made 
in response to a petition.

Page 6



Page 7

Agenda Item 6a



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Petitions and Deputations Committee – 1 March 2016 
1

PETITION – HERIOT’S ACCESS TO PUBLIC TRANSPORT HAS 
BEEN CONSIDERABLY WORSENED BY THE RAILWAY AND 
SUBSEQUENT UNDERPASS

Briefing Note by the Depute Chief Executive - Place
PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS COMMITTEE

1 March 2016 

1 SUMMARY
1.1 This briefing note advises the Petitions and Deputations Committee 

of the background to a petition received in relation to Heriot’s 
access to public transport being worsened by the railway and 
subsequent underpass.  Officers recommend no further action is 
taken at this time.

1.2 It is acknowledged that the return of the railway line at Heriot after many 
years required a new crossing of the line to be made, albeit Transport 
Scotland consulted on two alternatives and the resulting underpass has 
changed the local environment. 

1.3 During and following the construction phase of the underpass, Officers 
have continued to have discussions with BAM in order to resolve 
outstanding issues, in particular, matters concerning the lighting and 
drainage.  Our understanding is that BAM have made progress with works 
to ensure that a satisfactory outcome has been reached in terms of water 
issues and resolving the glare from the lighting which includes a timing 
switch. 

1.4 An audit process is still underway in relation the adoption of roads, bridges 
and other infrastructure along the length of the Borders railway line which 
the Council will adopt in future.  Whilst the underpass will remain the 
ownership of Network Rail, an audit was undertaken and no outstanding 
works were identified, the ramps have been installed to meet DDA 
requirements.

1.5 Officers have previously commented on the provision of additional lighting 
near the bus stop and have indicated that the provision of lighting at the 
new junction into Heriot and along the approaches of the A7 would lead to 
pedestrians being able to clearly see any approaching vehicles in the lit 
section of the road or vehicle headlights on the unlit section of the road to 
allow them to make judgement on whether it is safe to cross the road.
The Council does not light crossing points at rural bus stop sites as a 
matter of course and therefore we do not intend to proceed with any 
further works at this time.

1.6 With regards to the provision of winter service, the Council accepts that 
Heriot sits at an elevated position and can on occasions receive the ‘blunt 
end of severe weather’. Page 23

Agenda Item 6b



Petitions and Deputations Committee – 1 March 2016 
2

1.7 Officers have reviewed the policy around treatment of rural areas ensuring 
that when assessing Heriot fairness and consistency has been applied in 
this case.  Similarly Officers have reviewed the available resources in 
relation to the level of service that can be provided in treating the 
underpass and can confirm that there are not sufficient resources available 
to provide primary treatment in the vicinity of the new underpass.  The 
Council remains committed to supporting Heriot through the Resilient 
Community banner, to provide additional resources in the form of training, 
equipment and materials to assist the community.

1.8 In providing salt bins at the underpass, Scottish Borders Council is not 
relinquishing its responsibility to provide a winter service to the community 
at Heriot.  The Council currently provides over 1,000 salt bins across the 
region in areas where it does not provide primary treatment.  The 
additional salt bin provision at the underpass will now increase the total 
number of salt bins in Heriot to four and these additional salt bins will 
provide a further self-help facility for the community during times of winter 
weather when the Council’s resources are being deployed in higher priority 
areas.

1.9 The Council monitors complaints and service requests through its 
Complaints procedures and Customer Relations Management System 
(CRM).  In analysing this over the winter period, November to mid 
February, there has been only one service request in relation to winter 
treatment in and around the Heriot underpass area – ‘empty grit bin’.  One 
assumes therefore that the Community has managed the process within 
the resources available to them.

2 CONCLUSION
2.1 I recommend that the Committee acknowledges the Petition for 

Heriot’s access to public transport being worsened by the railway 
and subsequent underpass but takes no further action at this time.

Approved by

Depute Chief Executive  - PLACE   Signature …………………………………

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Philip Barr Depute Chief Executive - Place

Background Papers:  Petitions Procedure
Previous Minute Reference:  None

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Jacqueline Whitelaw can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Jacqueline Whitelaw, Environment and Infrastructure, Scottish Borders 
Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA, Tel 01835 
825431, Fax 01835 825071, email eitranslationrequest@scotborders.gov.uk. 

Page 24



Petitions and Deputations Committee – 1 March 2016 1

PETITION IN SUPPORT OF A 3G PITCH AT VICTORIA PARK, 
PEEBLES, IF THERE IS NO OTHER VIABLE SITE

Briefing Note by Clerk to the Council
PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS COMMITTEE

1 March 2016 

1 SUMMARY

1.1 This briefing note advises the Petitions and Deputations Committee 
of the non-acceptance of a petition received in support of the siting 
of a 3G Pitch at Victoria Park, Peebles, if there is no other viable 
site.  

1.2 I received a petition on 29 December 2015 in support of the siting of a 3G 
Pitch in Victoria Park, Peebles, if there is no other viable site.  A statement 
within the form explained that the petition had been raised in response to a 
recent petition against the siting of a 3G pitch at Victoria Park. While a large 
number of signatures had been appended to the petition form, the part on 
the form where 10 signatures are required had not been completed.  Having 
checked the Council’s committee papers, I have confirmed that the 
Executive Committee agreed at its meeting on 29 September 2015 that 
Victoria Park was the preferred location for a 3G synthetic pitch in Peebles.   

1.3 Within the terms of the Petitions procedure agreed at Council, petitions will 
not be accepted which:-

‘relate to a decision made by the Council or a committee during the 
preceding six months’.  

1.4 For the above reasons and after acknowledging receipt of the petition, I 
wrote in more detail to the Principal Petitioner on 27 January advising that 
the petition could not be accepted for consideration by the Petitions and 
Deputations Committee at this time.   

2 CONCLUSION

2.1 I recommend that the Committee notes the non-acceptance at this 
time of the Petition in support of the Siting of the 3G Pitch at 
Victoria Park, Peebles, if there is no other viable site.

Approved by

Clerk to the Council Signature …………………………………..

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



Petitions and Deputations Committee – 1 March 2016 2

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Jenny Wilkinson Clerk to the Council 01835 825004

Background Papers:  Petitions Procedure
Previous Minute Reference:  Petitions & Deputations Committee 10 December 2015

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Jenny Wilkinson can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Jenny Wilkinson, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, 
TD6 0SA.  Tel:  01835 825004  Email: jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk 

Page 26

mailto:jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 Minute
	5 The Petitions Procedure
	6a Petition
	6b Briefing Note by Depute Chief Executive (Place)
	7 Petition considered inadmissible

